Chowan County Board of Commissioners
Regular Meeting
Monday, January 6, 2025
Chowan County Public Safety Center
305 West Freemason Street
6:00pm

This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled January 6,
2025.

Present: Chairman Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Larry McLaughlin, Ellis Lawrence, Chris Evans,
Tray Taylor, Ron Cummings, and Tony Shaffer.

Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard and Board Clerk Susanne Stallings, Finance
Officer Cathy Smith and County Attorney Lauren Arizaga-Womble.

Regular Meeting
Chair Kirby called the regular meeting to order and led in the pledge.

Commissioner Taylor then offered the invocation.

Approval of Agenda
Board Clerk Susanne Stallings noted the request for the addition of item 8a to the agenda. A
request for approval of a Pickleball Tournament to raise funds for an Endowment Fund.

Commissioner Evans moved to approve the agenda as amended.
Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Public Comment
Chair Kirby opened the floor for public comment.

There was none.

Consent Agenda

All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one
motion. If a County Commissioner requests discussion on an item, the item will be removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

a. Minutes
Minutes of the November 12, 2024 Special Meeting, November 18, 2024 Regular
and Special Meetings, November 25, 2024 Joint Meeting, December 2, 2024
Regular Meeting and the December 5, 2024 Opioid Settlement Funds Committee
Meeting.



b. 2025 Commissioner Committee Appointments
The Board will accept the 2025 Committee Appointments from the Chair.

c. Tax Refunds and Releases
Eason, A. $100 Overpayment
Prescott, E. $3,385.73 Paid Twice

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

JA Holmes High School Change Order

School Superintendent Tammy Ward and Bob Sebire a representative from MB Khan presented
the Board with a request for approval of a change order for technology package at John A.
Holmes High School. They provided a PowerPoint presentation which is included in the January
6, 2025 meeting file. Ms. Ward reported that the initial Technology budget for the High School
construction project was $1,000,000 (for all equipment). The quote for technology data which
includes everything but the audio visual equipment for the auditorium and gym totaled
$1,103,139.45 for the Technology Data package. The request was to utilize $103,139.45 from
contingency funds. She introduced Mr. Sebire to discuss the increase. She reviewed several
updates from the project. She noted that there are new personnel in the school system that are
working now and were not in these positions when the budgets were set up. She stated a meeting
was held to discuss the proposal and to discuss the new technology a/v equipment package for
the auditorium and the gym. She stated the Technology AV costs will have to come from
contingency funds as well. She stated if the request tonight is approved the current balance of
contingency fund will be $5,609,129.76. She stated that walkthrough and discussions have
begun for special equipment and lab furnishings as well as classroom and building furnishings.

Mr. Sebire stated that they request that the technology package be broken into two phases to
separate the A/V equipment. He noted that the A/V equipment is costly.

Commissioner McLaughlin asked what the package includes for the current change order.
Mr. Sebire stated this is all of the cabling, alarm systems, access control and security systems.
Commissioner McLaughlin asked why this was not included.

Mr. Sebire stated it was included prices went up.

Commissioner McLaughlin stated his concern with the increase.

Mr. Sebire stated that technology was broken out separately from the MB Kahn package. He
stated this is being added to MB Khan to manage the installation of technology.

Mr. Howard noted that there are two line items for technology and furniture for $1 million each
line. He stated that the A/V equipment is not schedule critical but will come back at a later time.



Commissioner Shaffer asked if there will be offset in costs to reduce the expense.

Mr. Howard noted that most projects data, technology and furniture are separated out for owner
cost. He noted this was project contingency not additional contingency funds.

Chair Kirby asked about a budget update on the project. He asked what the bottom line.
Ms. Smith stated that the original total project budget was $82,495,579.

Chair Kirby asked what is in contingency.

Mr. Howard stated that $5.6 million left in contingency.

Ms. Smith stated that total contingency was $6,335,089. She stated right now $5.6 remains in
contingency.

Mr. Howard noted that $2.5 million is not available for project overages it was there for LGC
approval. He stated that major concerns left for use of contingency is A/V equipment and
furnishings.

Chair Kirby noted that everything else falls under the GMP.

Mr. Howard stated that there may be soil issues when parking is done.

Chair Kirby asked how soon will we know about the A/V and Furniture costs.

Ms. Ward stated we should know within the next couple of months.

Mr. Howard stated that the soil issues have been the unseen issues. The old building will have to
be demolished for parking and there may be contingency expenses there.

Chair Kirby asked how many bids were received.
Mr. Sebire stated there were two bids.

Commissioner Evans moved to approve the change order as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all
in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

DSS Stipend Request

DSS Director Tyeshia Phelps presented the Board with a request for approval to offer a stipend
to a current employee who will over the next 3-6 months serve and train as Interim
Administrative Officer. The stipend will be $698.94 per month and will be funded with lapsed
salary.

Commissioner Shaffer stated he has served on the DSS Board and feels this expense is justified.
He moved to approve the request as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion
passed unanimously (7-0).



Elections Annual Report
Elections Director Kristi Nixon provided the Board with the annual report from the Elections
Office. A copy of the PowerPoint presentation is in the meeting file labeled January 6, 2025.

R/O Plant Test Well Site Purchase Approval

Mr. Howard noted that previously the Board authorized the County Manager to negotiate the
purchase of properties for the R/O test well sites. He asked that the Board formally approve the
following purchases:

Address Purchase Price
619 Poplar Neck Rd. $33,281.64
301 Poplar Neck Rd. $28,673.93
627Haughton Rd. $161,455.62

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the purchase prices as presented. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Appointments

DSS Board
Ms. Stallings noted that it is recommended that the Board appoint Alex Kehayes to fill the
unexpired term previously held by Tony Shaffer.

Commissioner Shaffer moved to approve the request as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all in
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Recreation Advisory Board
Ms. Stallings noted that it is recommended that the Board reappoint Gary Roth to the Rec
Advisory Board.

Commissioner Shaffer moved to approve the request as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all in
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

ARCD

Ms. Stallings noted that in 2024 ARCD Board amended its bylaws to reduce its membership to
one appointee from each of the 10 member counties. Previously Chowan held four appointment
seats on this Board. It is recommended that the Board reappoint Fenton Eure as Chowan
County’s appointee to the ARCD Board.

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the request as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all
in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Senior Tarheel Legislature
Ms. Stallings noted that it is recommended that Brenda Lawrence be appointed as the alternate
representative for Chowan County on the Senior Tarheel Legislature.




Commissioner Taylor moved to approve the request as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all in
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Pickleball Tournament

Recreation Director Shannon Ray provided the Board with information on a proposed Pickleball
Tournament to be held in March. She stated that it is recommended that the funds raised for the
tournament go towards the Robbie Laughton Endowment Fund. She stated that the fund needs to
get back to $25,000 to return to the Community Foundations to again be considered an
endowment fund. She stated that currently the fund is at $17,147.

Commissioner Shaffer moved to approve the tournament and revenues to be assigned as
presented. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Financial Items
Finance Officer Cathy Smith presented the following:

Current Fiscal Year Budget Amendments

2025-030
Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
P (Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)

Water

61-3990-990-00 Fund Balance Appropriated - Water Fund 223,811.19

61-7120-570-00 Capital Outlay - Land 223,811.19

Balanced 223,811.19 223,811.19

Justification:
To amend the budget for the Water Fund to include land purchases for
the RO test well sites. The property addresses include 619 Poplar Neck
Rd., 301 Poplar Neck Rd., and 627 Haughten Rd. The purchases are
being made using Fund Balance from the Water Fund.

2025-031



.. Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description (Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Register of Deeds
11-3418-415-00 *Preservation/Automation 633.48
11-4180-298-00 *Dept Supplies - Auto/Pres 211.16
11-4180-440-00 *Contr Svcs - Automation/Pres 211.16
11-4180-511-00 *C/O - Auto/ Pres 211.16
Sheriff's Office
11-3431-232-00  *Sheriff Donations 150.00
11-4317-440-00  *Donation - Expense 150.00
Animal Shelter
11-3438-894-00 *Donations - Chowan 257.00
11-3438-894-01 *Donations - Gates 752.00
11-3438-894-02  *Donations - Perquimans 99.00
11-3438-894-03  *Donations - Other 102.00
11-4381-600-00 *Donation - Expense 1,210.00
11-3438-895-00 *Adoption - Chowan 700.00
11-3438-895-01 *Adoption - Gates 200.00
11-3438-895-02 *Adoption - Perquimans 610.00
11-3438-895-03 *Adoption - Other 1,175.00
11-4381-441-00  *Contr Svcs - Spay/Neuter 2,685.00
Cooperative Ext:
11-3495-363-00 *SHIIP Grant (Senior Health Insurance
Information Program) 3,810.00
11-4950-600-00 *SHIIP Grant (Senior Health Insurance
Information Program) 3,810.00
11-3495-370-00 *AG Program Fees Discretionary 471.26
11-4953-440-00 *Ag Program Fees Discretionary 471.26
11-3495-378-00 *4-H Fees Discretionary 3,713.00
11-4953-448-00 *4-H Fees Discretionary 3,713.00
Recreation
11-3612-487-00 *Recreation Donations 1,025.00
11-6130-299-01 *Donations - Dept Supplies 1,025.00
11-3612-504-00 *Recreation Special Events 345.00
11-6132-453-00 *Recreation Special Events 345.00
Senior Center
11-3616-533-00 *Reg Fees - Trips 2,218.00
11-4268-312-00  *TRIPS - Senior Citizens 2,218.00
11-3616-533-01  *Registration Fees Activities 85.00
11-4268-299-01  *Activities - Dept. Supplies 85.00
11-3616-535-04  *Silver Sneakers 864.00
11-3616-535-05  *Silver & Fit 72.00
11-3616-535-06 *Renew Active 705.00
11-4268-352-02  *Healthways 1,641.00
11-3616-535-01  *Donations - Fitness 105.00
11-4268-352-01  *Donations - Fitness 105.00
DSS
12-3531-230-14  *DSS Special Events 150.00
12-5310-450-00  *DSS Special Events 150.00
Balanced 18,241.74 18,241.74
Total Discretionary Income Received FYE 2025 138,614.42

Justification:

To amend the 2025 budget to include Discretionary income for November

2024.




2025-032

.. Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Insurance Proceeds
11-3493-890-00 Insurance Proceeds 2,866.90
Sheriff's Office
11-4310-353-00 Maint & Repairs - Vehicles 2,866.90
Balanced 2,866.90 2,866.90
Justification:
To amend the budget to include Insurance Proceeds for Sheriff's Office
for MVA on 12/01/24.
2025-033
.. Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
DSS
12-5310-121-00 Salaries - Regular (6,000.00)
12-5310-126-00 Salaries - Part-time 6,000.00

Balanced -

Justification:

To amend the budget for Social Services to include temporary part-time
position to provide training to a new Administrative Officer. This is a
transfer between line items and no additional funding is being
requested.

2025-034




Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
; (Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
EMS
60-3437-417-00 HSGP 2024 - UTV Grant - Rev 105,000.00
60-4370-602-00 HSGP 2024 - UTV Grant - Exp 105,000.00
Balanced 105,000.00 105,000.00
Justification:
To amend the budget to include Homeland Security Grant received for
EMS for purchase of Utility Terrain Vehicle (UTV) and transport trailer.
The grant application was approved by the BOCC on 10/3/22.
2025-035
.. Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Carry-Forward Balances
Water Dept
61-3980-980-27 Transfer from ARPA Fund 189,705.30
61-7120-595-00 RO Plant - Test Well Construction 46,032.09
61-7120-595-01 RO Plant - WTP Pilot Study 143,673.21
Balanced 189,705.30 189,705.30

Justification:
To amend the budget for the Water Fund to include carry-forward
balance from 2024 for ARPA fund. BOC appropriated 51,000,000 in
ARPA funds for RO Plant Construction. 5810,294.70 was transferred
from ARPA fund in FY 2024.

2025-036




Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
; (Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Water Dept
61-3990-990-00 Fund Balance Appropriated - Water 133,126.79
61-7120-595-01 RO Plant - WTP Pilot Study 133,126.79
Balanced 133,126.79 133,126.79
Justification:
To amend the budget for the Water Fund to include contract for
Magette Well for RO Pilot Study. BOCC approved contract with
Magette on 06/03/24. Contract is 5276,800.00 and is partially being
paid with ARPA funds.
2025-037
.. Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Capital Projects
32-3810-033-00 Transfer from Capital Reserve 38,557.00
32-8100-457-00 Courthouse Renovations 38,557.00
Capital Reserve
33-3990-990-00 Fund Balance Appropriated - Cap Res 38,557.00
33-9800-980-32 Transfer to Capital Projects 38,557.00
Balanced 77,114.00 77,114.00

Justification:

To amend the budget for Capital Projects and Capital Reserve Funds to
include change-order for furnishings for the Courthouse Renovations
project (see attached change order from JKF Architecture).

2025-038




Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description R
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Solid Waste
62-3471-530-00 Scrap Tire Tax Distribution - Rev 6,659.80
62-4710-694-00 Scrap Tire Tax Distribution - Exp 6,659.80
62-3471-531-00 White Goods Tax Distribution - Rev 2,011.21
62-4710-695-00 White Goods Tax Distribution - Exp 2,011.21
Balanced 8,671.01 8,671.01
Justification:
To amend the 2025 budget for Solid Waste to include Scrap Tire and
White Goods tax distributions.
2025-039
Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description R
(Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
Carry-Forward Balances
E-911 Fund
24-3431-360-00 Capital Grant - Motorola 30,594.81
24-3990-990-00 Fund Balance Appropriated - E911 Fund 9,629.26
24-4325-524-00 911 Motorola Radio Project 40,224.07
Balanced 40,224.07 40,224.07

Justification:

To amend the 2025 budget for E-911 Fund to carry forward 2024
balance for Motorola Radio Project grant.

2025-040




Revenue Expense
Account Number Account Description
- (Inc+/Dec-) (Inc+/Dec-)
DSS
12-5310-121-00 Salaries - Regular (30,000.00)
12-5310-198-00 Prof Services - Temp Agency 30,000.00
Balanced - -

Justification:

To amend the budget for Social Services to include additional service
from Vanguard Professional Services (Temp Agency). This is a transfer
between line items and no additional funding is being requested.

Commissioner Lawrence moved to approve the budget amendments as presented. Chair Kirby
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

External Board/Committee Report
Commissioner Lawrence provided an update from the COA Board of Trustees.

Manager’s Report
County Manager Kevin Howard provided the following updates:

- Mr. Howard noted that the R/O Pilot Plant study is coming to an end.

- He noted the courthouse renovation would be completed by the end of January. He
stated that notifications have been sent and the damages for project overages will be
assessed to the contractor for $1,000 per day.

- He noted that a 2 hour delay is in place for Tuesday, January 7% due to anticipated
black ice on the roadways.

Timely and Important Matters

Motion to Amend Agenda

Commissioner Cummings moved to amend that agenda to add a closed session pursuant to North
Carolina General Statute 143-318.11(a)(3) for attorney client privilege and discussion of a
lawsuit: REV. DR. JOHN SHANNON, SHERRONNE BATTLE, STELLA BROTHERS,
DEBRA MILLER, and ROD PHILLIPS v. Town of Edenton, Town Council, Chowan County,
Board of Commissioners.

Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).



Closed Session

Commissioner Cummings moved to go into closed session pursuant to North Carolina General
Statute 143-318.11(a)(3) for attorney client privilege and discussion of a lawsuit: REV. DR.
JOHN SHANNON, SHERRONNE BATTLE, STELLA BROTHERS, DEBRA MILLER, and
ROD PHILLIPS v. Town of Edenton, Town Council, Chowan County, Board of Commissioners.

Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

The minutes of the closed session are sealed.

Commissioner Cummings moved to come out of closed session. Chair Kirby asked for all in
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Adjourn
Commissioner Evans moved to adjourn. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed

unanimously (7-0).

Adjourn
Being no further business, Commissioner Evans moved that the meeting be adjourned. Chair

Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0).

Bob Kirby, Chairman Susanne Stallings, Clerk



